
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M 
  
TO:  Amy Nielsen, Executive Secretary 
  Faculty Senate 
FROM: Becky Bitter, Registrar’s Office 
FOR:  Professional Health Sciences Committee 
DATE: 17 October 2019 
SUBJECT: Proposal to Establish a Certificate in Medical Ethics 
 
At its meeting on October 16, 2019, PHSC reviewed and approved a proposal from the Elson S. 
Floyd College of Medicine to establish a Certificate in Medical Ethics.   
 
The following were noted: 

• The certificate approval is dependent upon the approval of MED ETH 500, 510, 530, and 
540 which are presented on PHSC Bulletin No. 1. 

• The certificate will be offered on the Spokane campus only. 
 
The Catalog Subcommittee has also reviewed and approved this proposal. 
 
At this time, Faculty Senate review and approval is recommended, to be effective fall 2020. 
 



From: noreply@wsu.edu
To: curriculum.submit
Subject: 009 504350 Medical Education and Clinical Sciences Requirements New : Add Professional Certificate
Date: Thursday, March 28, 2019 7:29:54 AM
Attachments: 2019.03.28.07.29.49.42.FormData.html

2019.03.28.07.29.47.08.currentCatalogFile_Rationales.docx

Mary Ann Clemens has submitted a request for a major curricular change. His/her email address is: 
maryann.clemens@wsu.edu.

Request (from selection dropdown): Add Professional Certificate

Department: Medical Education and Clinical Sciences

New Professional Certificate: Bioethics/Medical Ethics CSC Note: Title: Medical Ethics Certificate

CIP Code: 51.3201

Requested Effective Date: Fall 2019 CSC Note: New effective date Fall 2020

Campus:

Dean: Tomkowiak, John - Dean - Medicine

Chair: Tomkowiak, John

Catalog Subcommittee
Approval Date

AAC, PHSC, or GSC
Approval Date

Faculty Senate
Approval Date

mailto:noreply@wsu.edu
mailto:curriculum.submit@wsu.edu



  

    

      Washington State University

    



    

      MAJOR CURRICULAR CHANGE FORM - NEW REQUIREMENTS

    



  


  

    Detailed instructions for completing curricular change forms can be found at curriculumchange.registrar.wsu.edu.

  



        

    NOTE: If proposing a new program (degree) or extending, moving, consolidating, eliminating or renaming an existing program (degree), these proposals must first go through the Provost's Office review process. Additional information can be found at https://provost.wsu.edu/procedures/degree-approval/

Effective Date:Fall 2019


    To ensure completion of the approval process for the requested effective date, approvals of this submission from the Chair and Dean/Associate Dean should be received no later than October 1st prior to the requested fall effective date. Please consider your departmental and college timelines when preparing proposals. Submissions will be accepted after the deadline but may not receive Faculty Senate approval in time for the requested effective term.

  




    New Curriculum Requirement Request



  


  Select new curriculum requirement from drop-down menuAdd Professional Certificate
DepartmentMedical Education and Clinical Sciences

Degree   (example, B.S. in chemistry)

New Plan (Major) Title
CIP# CIP Code Finder



        Campus (select all that apply): 

        Everett Global Pullman Spokane Tri-Cities Vancouver 




    


    Degree   (examples, Ph.D. in chemistry; M.S. in chemistry)

New Plan Title
CIP# CIP Code Finder



        Campus (select all that apply): 

        Everett Global Pullman Spokane Tri-Cities Vancouver 




    


    Degree   (example, B.S. in chemistry)

New SubPlan(option) Title
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




    


    

      New Minor Title
CIP# CIP Code Finder

 Campus (select all that apply): 

        Everett Global Pullman Spokane Tri-Cities Vancouver 




    


    

      New Certificate
CIP# CIP Code Finder

 Campus (select all that apply): 

        Everett Global Pullman Spokane Tri-Cities Vancouver 




    


    

      New Graduate Certificate
CIP# CIP Code Finder

 Campus (select all that apply): 

        Everett Global Pullman Spokane Tri-Cities Vancouver 




    


    

      New Professional Certificate
Bioethics/Medical EthicsCIP# 51.3201CIP Code Finder

 Campus (select all that apply): 

        Everett Global Pullman Spokane Tri-Cities Vancouver 




    


  







  

    Supporting Documentation



  


  

    Supporting documentation includes a rationale statement and must also include either a catalog copy for undergraduate/professional or a copy of the current and proposed requirements for graduate requests.  



    The rationale statement should explain the reasons for each request marked above, and any impacts to departments or colleges in Pullman and other campuses.

Undergraduate/Professional: 
 

    Copy and paste current catalog copy into a word document. Strike though any deletions and underline any additions. Please note that revisions can be made to adapt a schedule of studies (4 year plan) to accommodate different campuses, but the requirements must be the same for both campuses. For example you cannot require Math 106 on one campus and Math 107 on another. However, you can amend the schedule of studies (4 year plan) to require Math 106 or Math 107.

    

Graduate: 
Please contact the Programs Supervisor of the Graduate School for a copy of your most recent requirements. Copy and paste these requirements into a word document. Strike through any deletions and underline any additions. Please note that requirements must be the same for all campuses. For example, you cannot require Math 534 on one campus and Math 535 on another. However, you can require Math 534 or Math 535.

    



    Choose file to upload. 

    

      Choose file to upload

    


    

      Choose file to upload

    


    

      Choose file to upload

    



      If you need more file upload boxes, click the link below. 
Add additional documents


  







  

    Submitter Information



  


  

    

      First Name
Mary Ann


      Last Name
Clemens


      Email
maryann.clemens@wsu.edu


      Phone Number
509-368-6788


      Contact (if different)



      Email



      Phone Number



    


  


  

    

      Dean and Chair Approval



    


    

      

        Tomkowiak, JohnChair Name
john.tomkowiak@wsu.edu


        Chair Emailjohn.tomkowiak@wsu.edu


      



        Dean Name (or designee)
Tomkowiak, John - Dean - Medicinejohn.tomkowiak@wsu.edu


        Dean Emailjohn.tomkowiak@wsu.edu


      



        2nd Chair Name (if applicable)



        2nd Chair Email


      



        2nd Dean Name (or designee)



        2nd Dean Email


      


    


  





Online Form (Version 1.0) Submitted

                3/28/2019 7:29:47 AM from

                76.245.196.125

http://emcms.wsu.edu/Uploads/FORM_476/2019.03.28.07.29.47.08.currentCatalogFile_Rationales.docx






[bookmark: _GoBack]Rationale for Courses in the Online Medical Ethics Certificate Program 



Conceptual Foundations of Bioethics

This course is needed to provide students with the basic concepts and categories of reasoning essential to bioethics.  This is an entirely on-line course meant to serve as a Foundation for the rest of the Certificate in Medical Ethics.



Seminar in Conceptual Foundations of Bioethics

Through Socratic dialog and debate, this seminar is an essential component of developing students’ ability to apply the concepts and categories of reasoning introduced in “Conceptual Foundations of Bioethics” to novel scenarios.  This in-person and on-line hybrid course is meant to be taken concurrently with the “Conceptual Foundations” course.



The Practice of Clinical Ethics. 

This course provides vital practical education concerning the application of bioethics in a clinical setting.  This entirely on-line course is meant to follow the conceptually oriented courses: Conceptual Foundations of Bioethics” and “Seminar in Conceptual Foundations of Bioethics.”



Seminar in Clinical Ethics: Methods, Process Skills & Traits

This hybrid in-person and on-line course provides essential practice in applying the skills, processes and traits needed to conduct competent ethics case consultation in a clinical setting.  It is meant to be taken concurrently with the on-line course “The Practice of Clinical Ethics.”





Rationale for the Certificate Program

Since the late 1980s to early 1990s, a number of influential medical organizations, including the American Hospital Association (1986), the American Medical Association (1985) and the Joint Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare Organizations (1992)  have recommended or required all hospitals and medical centers to have in place a “mechanism to address ethical issues” as they arise in the clinical setting.  Motivation for this requirement was the recognition that advances in medical science and technology can complicate once (relatively) simple decision making:  we now can often treat a disease or malady in more than one manner, each with different expected benefits and side-effects (e.g. lumpectomy versus mastectomy versus chemotherapy and radiation); and in many areas ethical issues concerning the “match” between patient values and treatment intervention are newly created by emerging capabilities (a decision concerning whether artificial respiration is appropriate for a patient in a persistent vegetative state was not an issue prior to the availability of ventilators).



Most academically-affiliated teaching hospitals and major tertiary care medical centers now have not only ethics committees, but some form of professional ethics consultation service available to assist in complicated clinical cases.  Unfortunately, many smaller rural and public hospitals serving a disproportionate share of indigent patients lack the resources available to hire professionals with PhD-level training in clinical ethics like those employed by larger institutions and teaching hospitals.  There is significant need among these institutions for access to clinical ethics support services and affordable educational resources for their (usually volunteer) ethics committees.  This Certificate is he Centerpiece of this educational outreach  strategy. The structure of ESFCOM, spread throughout the State at campuses in Vancouver, Tri-Cities, Everett, and Spokane, provides a unique opportunity to partner with diverse institutions throughout the State, and allows the faculty expertise of ESFCOM to mitigate access disparities to this important service that is available to most in more urban and academic environments



Program Director Thomas May has significant clinical experience in the provision of ethics consultation, and has been a leader in the provision of graduate educational programs in clinical bioethics for over 15 years, both at the Medical College of Wisconsin (where he served as the Director of Graduate Studies for the M.A. and Clinical Ethics Certificate programs) and with Kaiser Permanente of Northern California, where he designed a graduate certificate program for KP Northern California Ethics Committee members and provides educational support).  Since joining the faculty of the Elson S. Floyd College of Medicine (ESFCOM) at Washington State University in the summer of 2018, Dr. May has been working to develop educational opportunities  for ethics committee members and practicing health professionals in rural and underserved hospitals and medical practices throughout the State of Washington. 





From: Tomkowiak, John M
To: curriculum.submit
Subject: Re: 900 504350 Medical Education and Clinical Sciences Requirements New : Add Professional Certificate
Date: Friday, March 29, 2019 9:34:43 AM
Attachments: image001.png

 
 
John Tomkowiak, MD, MOL
Founding Dean
o: 509-368-6578 | john.tomkowiak@wsu.edu

 

From: "curriculum.submit@wsu.edu" <curriculum.submit@wsu.edu>
Date: Thursday, March 28, 2019 at 7:29 AM
To: "Tomkowiak, John M" <john.tomkowiak@wsu.edu>, "Tomkowiak, John M"
<john.tomkowiak@wsu.edu>
Subject: 504350 Medical Education and Clinical Sciences Requirements New : Add
Professional Certificate
 

Tomkowiak, John,

Tomkowiak, John - Dean - Medicine,

Mary Ann Clemens has submitted a request for a major curricular change.

Request (from selection dropdown): Add Professional Certificate

Department: Medical Education and Clinical Sciences

New Professional Certificate: Bioethics/Medical Ethics

CIP Code: 51.3201

Requested Effective Date: Fall 2019

Campus:

Both Chair and Dean approval is required to complete the submission process.
Please indicate that you have reviewed the proposal by highlighting one of the
statements below and reply all to this email. (curriculum.submit@wsu.edu.)
[Details of major change requested can be found in the attached supplemental

mailto:john.tomkowiak@wsu.edu
mailto:curriculum.submit@wsu.edu
mailto:john.tomkowiak@wsu.edu
file:////c/curriculum.submit@wsu.edu

@ Elson S.Floyd
College of Medicine

WASHINGTON STATE UNIVERSITY





documentation]

     1. I approve this proposal in its current form.

     2. I approve this proposal with revisions. Revisions are attached.

     3. I do not approve this proposal. Please return to submitter.

If you do not respond within one week, you will be sent a reminder email. If no
response is received within three weeks of the submission date, the proposal will be
returned to the submitter.

Thank you for your assistance as we embark on this new process. If you have any
questions or concerns, please let us know wsu.curriculum@wsu.edu.

 

Suzanne Lambeth, Assistant Registrar

Graduations, Curriculum, & Scheduling

Washington State University

Registrar's Office

PO Box 641035

Pullman WA 99164-1035

509-335-7905

slambeth@wsu.edu

Note: Please use the attachments to this email rather than the link below to view the
supporting documentation.

file:////c/wsu.curriculum@wsu.edu


The Certificate in Medical Ethics, in the Elson S. Floyd College of Medicine, is designed to 
prepare medical clinicians and ethics committee members to perform competent clinical ethics 
case consultation in a hospital, long-term care or clinic setting. The Certificate consists of twelve 
credit hours divided between four courses, which are meant to be taken in sets of two 
concurrent 3-credit hour courses over one academic year.  One course per concurrent set is 
taken entirely on-line, and the second is a seminar-style course taken both on-line and through 
live interactive discussion either in-person or via web-conferencing.  Fall semester courses 
consist of MED ETH 500 Conceptual Foundations of Bioethics and MED ETH 510 Seminar in 
Conceptual Foundations of Bioethics.  These courses take students through basic tools of 
moral reasoning, including basic concepts in logic (fallacies, validity and soundness, etc.); 
descriptive and normative reasoning, positive and negative rights, basic approaches to morality 
(deontology and consequentialism, pluralism, etc.) and definitions of equality, and justice.  
Spring Semester courses consist of MED ETH 530 The Practice of Clinical Ethics and MED ETH 
540 Seminar in Clinical Ethics: Methods, Process, Skills & Traits.  These courses delve into the 
practical aspects of case analysis and the practice of ethics consultation in the clinical setting, 
with particular focus on the traditional range of topics in this emerging field of study (informed 
consent; surrogate decision making; professional rights of conscience; concepts of welfare and 
quality of life, etc.).  During the seminar portion of this concurrent set of courses, students are 
taught the basic tools of chart writing, information gathering, and conflict resolution techniques 
essential to the conduct of ethics case consultation in a clinical setting.  
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